

review, affirm the ID's finding of no violation of section 337. Specifically, the Commission has determined to review and take no position on the ID's findings: (a) that claims 1 and 17 of the '082 patent are anticipated by Japanese Patent Publication No. S62-171212 to Soneda ("Soneda"); (b) that claims 13 and 29 of the '082 patent are invalid as obvious over Soneda in combination with U.S. Patent No. 6,094,246 to Kozisek et al. ("Kozisek"); (c) that claim 8 of the '867 patent is not invalid as obvious over U.S. Patent Publication No. 2009/0179261 to Sekugichi in combination with U.S. Patent Publication No. 2009/0218619 to Hebert; and (d) on the domestic industry requirement for the '082 patent and the '867 patent.

The Commission has determined not to review, and thereby adopts, the ID's remaining findings, including with respect to the '082 patent: (a) the ID's claim constructions; (b) that Arigna failed to prove that Respondents infringed any of asserted claims 1, 13, 17, and 29; (c) that asserted independent claims 1 and 17 are invalid as anticipated by a prior art article written by Suharli Tedja et al. and published in the IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits in February 1995 ("Tedja"); (d) that asserted dependent claims 13 and 29 are invalid as obvious over Tedja alone or Tedja in combination with Kozisek; and (e) that asserted claims 1, 13, 17, and 29 are invalid as obvious over Kozisek in combination with Soneda. The Commission has further determined not to review the ID's findings that the asserted claims of the '867 patent are not infringed and claim 4 is invalid as anticipated by International Patent Application Publication WO 2009/060670 to Torii.

For the foregoing reasons, the Commission concludes that there is no violation of section 337 with respect to either the '082 patent or '867 patent. This investigation is hereby terminated.

The Commission voted to approve this determination on December 7, 2022.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: December 7, 2022.

Katherine Hiner,

Acting Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2022-26963 Filed 12-12-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-1346]

Certain Marine Air Conditioning Systems, Components Thereof, and Products Containing the Same; Institution of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on November 7, 2022, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of Dometic Corporation of Rosemont, Illinois and Dometic Sweden AB of Solna, Sweden. Supplements were filed on November 10, November 25, and November 28, 2022. The complaint alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain marine air conditioning systems, components thereof, and products containing same by reason of the infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 8,056,351 ("the '351 patent"). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by the applicable Federal Statute. The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a limited exclusion order and cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Jessica Mullan, Office of Docket Services, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205-1802.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C.

1337, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2022).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on December 7, 2022, Ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain products identified in paragraph (2) by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1-5, 7, 11, and 17-22 of the '351 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the plain language description of the accused products or category of accused products, which defines the scope of the investigation, is "marine air conditioning systems for use in nautical vehicles, having marine blower systems adapted to nautical vehicles, main body systems for use in marine air conditioning units, or assemblies for adjusting the blower with respect to the aforementioned main body";

(3) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:

(a) The complainants are:

Dometic Corporation, 5600 N. River Road, Suite 250, Rosemont, IL 60018
Dometic Sweden AB, Hemvärnsgatan 15
6 tr, Solna, SE, SE-171 54

(b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served:

Shanghai Hopewell Industrial Co. Ltd.,
Room 1201, 2nd floor, Liancheng
Piazza, Fengxian District, Shanghai
201401, China

Shanghai Hehe Industrial Co. Ltd., No.
418 Gonggeng Road, Fengcheng
Town, Fengxian District, Shanghai
201400, China

CitiMarine, L.L.C., 3330 NW 112
Avenue, #4, Doral, Florida 33172
Mabru Power Systems, Inc., 1105 Old
Griffin Road, Dania Beach, Florida
33004

(3) For the investigation so instituted, the Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

The Office of Unfair Import Investigation is not a party to this investigation.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19, 2020), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the complainants of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: December 7, 2022.

Katherine Hiner,

Acting Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2022-26964 Filed 12-12-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives

[OMB Number 1140-0102]

Agency Information Collection Activities; Proposed eCollection of eComments Requested; Revision of Currently Approved Collection; FEL Out of Business Records

AGENCY: Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, Department of Justice.

ACTION: 30-Day notice.

SUMMARY: The Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF), Department of Justice (DOJ) will submit the following information collection request to the Office of

Management and Budget (OMB) for review and approval in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995. The proposed collection OMB 1140-0102 (FEL Out of Business Records) is being revised due to an increase in the number of respondents to this IC, which has also contributed to a rise in both the public burden hours and cost associated with this IC since the last renewal in 2019.

DATES: Comments are encouraged and will be accepted for an additional 30 days until January 12, 2023.

ADDRESSES: Written comments and recommendations for the proposed information collection should be sent within 30 days of publication of this notice to www.reginfo.gov/public/do/PRAMain. Find this particular information collection by selecting "Currently under 30-day Review—Open for Public Comments" or by using the search function.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Written comments and suggestions from the public and affected agencies concerning the proposed collection of information are encouraged. Your comments should address one or more of the following four points:

- Evaluate whether the proposed collection of information is necessary for the proper performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the information will have practical utility;
- Evaluate the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information, including the validity of the methodology and assumptions used;
- Evaluate whether and, if so, how the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected can be enhanced; and
- Minimize the burden of the collection of information on those who are to respond, including through the use of appropriate automated, electronic, mechanical, or other technological collection techniques or other forms of information technology, e.g., permitting electronic submission of responses.

Overview of this information collection:

1. *Type of Information Collection:* Revision of a currently approved collection.

2. *The Title of the Form/Collection:* FEL Out of Business Records.

3. *The agency form number, if any, and the applicable component of the Department sponsoring the collection:* Form number: None.

Component: Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, U.S. Department of Justice.

4. *Affected public who will be asked or required to respond, as well as a brief abstract:*

Primary: Business or other for-profit.

Other: Individuals or households.

Abstract: Per 27 CFR 555.128, when an explosive materials business or operation is discontinued, the records must be delivered to the ATF Out of Business Records Center within 30 days of the business or operations discontinuance.

5. *An estimate of the total number of respondents and the amount of time estimated for an average respondent to respond:* An estimated 538 respondents will utilize this information collection once annually, and it will take each respondent approximately 30 minutes to complete their responses.

6. *An estimate of the total public burden (in hours) associated with the collection:* The estimated annual public burden associated with this collection is 269 hours which is equal to 538 (total respondents) * 1 (# of response per respondent) * .5 (30 minutes).

7. *An Explanation of the Change in Estimates:* The adjustments associated with this information collection include an increase in the total respondents by 289 respectively, since the last renewal in 2019. Consequently, the cost burden has also risen by \$70,548 since 2019.

If additional information is required contact: Robert Houser, Department Clearance Officer, Policy and Planning Staff, Office of the Chief Information Officer, United States Department of Justice, Justice Management Division, Two Constitution Square, 145 N Street NE, Mail Stop 3.E-206, Washington, DC 20530.

Dated: December 8, 2022.

Robert Houser,

Assistant Director, Policy and Planning Staff, U.S. Department of Justice.

[FR Doc. 2022-26989 Filed 12-12-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4410-FY-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Proposed Consent Decree Under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA)

On December 7, 2022, the Department of Justice lodged a proposed Consent Decree with the United States District Court for the District of Nebraska in the lawsuit entitled *United States of America v. City of Hastings, et al.*, Civil Action No. 8:03-cv-00531 (D. Neb.),